1983

Utah Department of Business Regulation, Division of Public Utilities, Committee of Consumer Services v. Public Service Commission of Utah, Brent H. Cameron, Chairman, David R. Irvine, Commissioner, James M. Byrne. Commissioner : Brief of Plaintiff, Division of Public Utilities

NATURE OF THE CASE

Plaintiff appeals from Orders of the Public Service Commission of Utah (PSC or Commission) issued in PSCU Case No. 82-035-14 in which Utah Power & Light Company (Utah Power or Company) was granted in effect a one-time increase in rates of \$6,012,000 to be collected from Utah ratepayers during future period to partially make up for revenues received during the test year of PSCU Case No. 81-035-13 ending September, 1982 which were lower than revenues projected by the Company and included in rates.

DISPOSITION BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Upon application by Utah Power, a majority of the Public Service Commission, by Order dated December 30, 1982, granted the Company's request to remove \$6,012,000 from the Energy Balancing Account (EBA) of the Company, Account No. 191, which absent the Commission's Order, would have been returned to ratepayers in the form of an adjustment to the energy component of Utah Power's rates. The removal of \$6,012,000 from the EBA offset Company expenses in 1982 with the result of increasing Company earnings for calendar year 1982 and requiring an increase in future rates to make up for the adjustment. On July 5, 1983,

after rehearing, a majority of the Commission affirmed its original decision. Pursuant to § 54-6-16, Utah Code Annotated 1953, plaintiff appeals directly to this Court.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiff seeks a determination by the Court that the Orders of the Public Service Commission issued in Case No. 82-035-14 are void and unlawful as a matter of law and requests the Court to vacate said Orders with directions to the Public Service Commission to return to the balance of the EBA the amount removed by said Orders in order to allow those funds to be returned to ratepayers through the operation of the EBA procedure.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On October 8, 1982, Utah Power filed an application with the Public Service Commission, Case No. 82-035-14, styled "In the Matter of the Application of Utah Power & Light Company to Implement the Company's Energy Balancing Account for the Period September, 1981, through September, 1982." The application requested the transfer of \$6,012,000 from the then-existing balance in the Company's EBA to the Company.

Hearings were held on the application December 2, and 3, 1982. At the hearing, two witnesses testified on behalf of Utah Power. Dean L. Bryner testified as to the Company's view of purpose of the EBA pass-through procedure and the circumstances relating to the Company's request for a transfer of dollars from the EBA to the Company. He testified that during the general rate Case No. 81-035-13, which used a test-year period of 12 months ending September, 1982 for the purposes of projecting Utah jurisdictional revenues, expenses and investment as the basis of determining future rates, the Company's actual Utah jurisdictional sales were \$40,000,000 less than projected by the Company and included by the Commission in the determination of rates. The reduction in jurisdictional sales created an unanticipated opportunity to make additional shortterm excess energy sales (termed by the Company surplus nontariff sales, which means sales from assets allocated to serve Utah jurisdictional customers that are made to non-jurisdictional customers or unexpected additional sales from surplus to jurisdictional customers) of \$18,054,000.

Mr. Bryner argued that the current energy pass-through process, which offsets against energy expenses all nontariff sales revenues, created a "substantial windfall" to ratepayers at the expense of the Company. He argued that one-third of the additional revenue created by the loss of jurisdictional sales should not be credited against energy costs but should be used to

increase Company earnings. Mr. Bryner testified that this \$6,012,000 adjustment should not affect Case No. 82-035-13, an application by the Company for a general increase in rates to customers using a test-year period of September, 1982 through September, 1983 (and being considered by the Public Service Commission concurrently with the request in this proceeding) since the revenue shortfall was experienced only in the test year related to Case No. 81-035-13 (Record 5-10). Orrin T. Colby, Jr. reiterated Mr. Bryner's testimony and verified his calculations. In addition, he testified with regard to the Company's financial condition for the 12 months ended August, 1982. He presented figures for earnings per share, dividend payout ratio and return on common equity for those periods on a total Company basis (including business operations in Wyoming, Idaho and wholesale operations regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission). Mr. Colby estimated Utah jurisdictional return on equity to be about 13.25% stating that it was below the return on equity authorized in Case No. 81-035-13 of 16.3%. He testified that the Company proposal would improve earnings per share and return on common equity for the calendar year 1982. (Record 47-57).

The Division of Public Utilities (Division or Plaintiff) presented testimony through Dr. George Compton, that based on current financial conditions and investors' expectations, the requested infusion of dollars with the result of

improving the Company's financial condition was not necessary. In addition, Dr. Compton objected to the proposal of the Company because 1) it was retroactive in nature and 2) if the Commission wished to reduce risk, borne by shareholders of the Company, that jurisdictional revenues received will be less than and approved by the Commission that the Commission must also look at the other side of the coin; that is, reduce the risk borne by ratepayers that jurisdictional revenues received by the Company will be higher than those approved by the Commission. Dr. Compton suggested the consideration by the Commission of prospective modification of the energy pass-through procedure to consider both issues. (Record 101-126).

At the conclusion of the presentation of evidence, the Division of Public Utilities verbally moved the Commission to dismiss the application. The Division argued that 1) the Company's request was being improperly considered as an energy cost pass-through pursuant to § 54-7-12(3)(d), Utah Code Ann. 1981 Amend.); 2) the request was in contravention of the rule prohibiting retroactive ratemaking; and, 3) because the request was not an energy cost pass-through such a rate increase could not be granted without a determination that rates were just and reasonable based on evidence with regard to basic ratemaking components and that such evidence was not presented. The Commission failed to rule on the Division's Motion.

On December 30, 1982, the Commission issued its Order granting the application of Utah Power. The Commission, in its findings, recited the evidence presented by Utah Power including earnings per share, dividend payout ratio, and return on equity for the 12 months ended August, 1982, found that the Company had been authorized a return in equity by the Public Service Commission in Case No. 81-035-13 of 16.3% and concluded that "the adjustment proposed by the Company was just and reasonable and should be allowed". However, the Commission also concluded that any future adjustments of this kind must be prospective in nature.

The Order was silent as to the evidence presented by the plaintiff that current financial conditions and market expectations did not require the infusion of earnings requested by the Company. The Order was also silent as to the legal arguments raised in the plaintiff's Motion to Dismiss. Commissioner Bryne dissented, objecting to the retroactive nature of the Company's request stating "this Commission should not engage in retroactively assisting the Company when earnings are low or in retroactively punishing the Company when earnings are high". The Order of the Public Service Commission is attached hereto as Appendix 1.

Because the Order was issued in the closing days of 1982, the transfer of dollars was made by Utah Power with the

effect that the Company's financial condition was improved for calendar year 1982.

On January 19, 1983, within the time provided by law, plaintiff filed with the Commission its Petition for a Rehearing and Reconsideration pursuant to the requirements of § 54-7-15, Utah Code Annotated (1981 amendment). The Committee of Consumer Services also filed with the Commission a Motion for Rehearing and Reconsideration. By Order dated April 20, 1983, the Commission granted the Motion for Rehearing of the Division and the Committee. Hearing was held the 24th and 25th days of May, 1983. At the hearing, further testimony as presented by Mr. Bryner, which further explained the Company's views as to the purpose and function of the EBA. Mr. Colby also testified as to the financial effect on the Company should the Commission's Order be reversed on rehearing.

By Order dated July 5, 1983, the Commission reaffirmed its original decision in the proceeding. The majority of the Commission concluded that 1) the adjustment to the EBA approved by the Commission in this proceeding was "consistent" with other adjustments previously and currently made and did not alter the Commission-approved rate, 2) the "adjustment" was within the authority of the Commission, 3) it was consistent with the Commission's intent that the EBA "eliminate inequitable results or windfall benefits to either the Company or its ratepayers"

and, 4) the "adjustment" was not retroactive ratemaking. Commissioner Byrne again dissented. The Order on Rehearing is attached hereto as Appendix 2. Thereafter, on August 3, 1983, plaintiff petitioned this Court for Writ of Certiorari pursuant to the requirements of § 54-7-16, Utah Code Annotated 1953. Concurrent with the filing of the Petition for Certiorari, plaintiff requested of this Court a stay or suspension of the Public Service Commission's decision pending the outcome of this appeal. After oral argument by Plaintiff and intervenor Utah Power, the plaintiff's Motion was denied, by a Minute Entry dated August 15, 1983.

ARGUMENT

INTRODUCTION

In order to understand the nature of this appeal and the effect of the Public Service Commission decision in the proceeding before the Court, an understanding of the Public Utility regulatory process in the state of Utah is essential. Plaintiff intends, therefore, to as simply and briefly as possible describe the means available to the Public Service Commission to adjust utility rates within the authority delegated to the Public Service Commission by the Legislature as set forth in Title 54 Utah Code Ann.

After Munn v. Illinois , 94 U.S. 113, 24 L.Ed. 77 (1877), where the United States Supreme Court upheld an Illinois statute fixing maximum rates for the storage of grain by public warehousemen saying that such regulation was "for the public good", there had been a search for general standards in setting of fair rates for regulated industries. Smyth v. Ames , 169 U.S. 466 18 S.Ct. 418, 42 L.Ed. 819 (1898), was an early attempt to develop such standards. There, the Court held that the basis for all calculations as to reasonableness of rates must be the "fair value" of the property used in serving the public. This was later called the "rate base".

Building on Smyth , Justice Brandeis in his now universally followed concurring opinion in Missouri ex rel Southwestern Bell Telephone Company v. P.S.C. , 262 U.S. 276, 43 S.Ct. 544, 67 L.Ed. 981 (1923), articulated the standard for "just and reasonable" rates:

To decide whether a proposed rate is confiscatory, the tribunal must determine both what sum would be earned under it, and whether that sum would be a fair return. The decision involves ordinarily the making of four subsidiaries one:

- 1) What the gross earnings from operating a utility under the rate in controversy would be (a prediction).
- 2) What the operating expenses and charges while so operating would be (a prediction).
- 3) The rate base, that is what the amount is on which a return should be earned. (Under Smyth v. Ames an opinion, largely.)
- 4) What rate of return should be deemed fair. (An opinion, largely.)

262 U.S. at 291.

Subsequently, numerous cases have attempted to better define the basic requirements mentioned by Brandeis. See, for example, F.P.C. v. Hope Natural Gas Company, 320 U.S. 591, 64 S.Ct. 281, 88 L.Ed. 333 (1944), discussing proper rate base determination and Bluefield Water Works, and Improvement Company v. P.S.C., 262 U.S. 679, 43 S.Ct. 675 and 67 L.Ed. 476 (1923) discussing "fair rate of return".

Over the years, a well-defined standard for the determination of "just and reasonable" rates has solidified. This standard is applicable in the state of Utah (§ 54-3-1 Utah Code Ann. 1977 Amend.), and the procedure developed to assist in the determination of "just and reasonable" rates is also used in the State of Utah. This procedure was described by this Court in Utah Department of Business Regulation Division of Public Utilities v. Public Service Commission, 614 P.2d 1242 (1980), citing City of Los Angeles v. Public Utilities Commission, 497 P.2d 785, 797 (1972):

In City of Los Angeles v. Public Utilities Commission, the Court pointed out that the basic approach in ratemaking is to take a test year and determine the revenues, expenses, in investment for the test year period. Test year results are adjusted to allow for reasonably-anticipated changes in revenues, expenses, or other conditions in order that the test period results of operations will be as nearly representative of future conditions as possible. The Commission may adjust all figures, revenue, expense, and investment for anticipated

changes, but it may not adjust one side or part of the equation without adjusting the other . . .

In determining a just and reasonable rate, the gross revenue should be of a sum to cover two distinct components, the operating expense and the return on invested capital. The return (the profit) is calculated solely on the rate base (the capital contributed by the investors); a utility is not entitled to earn an additional profit on its expenses but only to recover those costs on a dollar-for-dollar basis. In a general rate proceeding, the Commission determines for a test period the expenses, the rate base, and the rate of return to be allowed. Based on those figures, the Commission determines the revenue requirements, then fixes a rate to produce sufficient income to meet the revenue requirements.

This formula is used only to determine rates prospectively in effect. Section 54-4-4(1) Utah Code Ann. (1953) gives the Public Service Commission authority to "determine just, reasonable or sufficient rates, . . . to be thereafter observed and in force".

In implementing this prohibition against retroactive ratemaking, the Commission looks to the future, using a future test year pursuant to § 54-4-4(3) (Utah Code Ann. 1975 Amend.), on the premise that, particularly in inflationary times, the future test period more accurately reflects conditions faced by the Company during the time the rates would be in effect. The Commission ignores occurrences prior to the test year whatever they may have been.

In order to arrive at rates which are just and reasonable using the rate-making procedure described, it is essential that all elements of revenue derived from utility assets, as well as expenses incurred in providing utility service be considered. However, because rates are always set prospectively, there exists the possibility that actual revenues, expenses and investment may be different than expected. There exists a risk for both ratepayers and the utility. The Company takes the risk that earnings will be less than intended by the Public Service Commission (until an adjustment can be made) and ratepayers take the risk that Company earnings may be better than authorized (until an adjustment can be made). This risk relationship helps promote cost effective and productive operations of utilities since any productivity gains directly affect earnings, and has been generally accepted in utility regulation. (A more complete discussion of this principle follows in Point III herein.)

During the time of the energy crisis of the early '70s, it became apparent that existing regulatory practices were not adequate to deal with volatile, unpredictable expenses such as fuel costs. Because fuel costs are typically a substantial portion of a utility's expense, rapid unforeseen increases in such costs had devastating effects on utility earnings. Legislators responded by implementing statutory methods of allowing rapid

adjustments in rates to pass these increased costs along to customers. These methods, often known generically as "fuel adjustment clauses", took many different forms but were typically limited to a dollar-to-dollar pass-through of fuel costs incurred by the utility.

In Utah, H.B. 227 was introduced in the Legislature in 1975, which resulted in an amendment to § 54-7-12(1) Utah Code Ann. (1953). Prior to the amendment, subsection (1) provided:

No public utility shall raise any rate . . . under any circumstances whatever, except upon a showing before the commission and a finding by the commission that such increase is justified.

After 1975, subsection (1) read:

No public utility shall raise any rate, fare, toll, rental, or charge or so alter any classification, contract, practice, rule or regulation as to result in an increase in any rate, fare, toll, rental or charge under any circumstances whatsoever except in the case of fuel cost increases to the utility by an independent contractor or other independent source of supply and then only upon a showing before the commission and a finding by the commission that such increase is justified.

Prior to 1975, the only procedure set forth in the statutes for obtaining a rate increase was that in 54-7-12(2), Utah Code Ann. (1953), designed to accommodate a general rate case proceeding. After 1975, with the amendment of § 54-7-12(1), the opportunity existed for a more responsive action by the

Commission related to utility fuel costs from an independent source of supply.

The exception to general rate case treatment was narrowly defined by the Legislature. While the Legislature wished the regulatory process to be flexible enough to be responsive to volatile and unpredictable costs, there was the expression of concern about the misuse of the amendment by utilities attempting to raise company profits and concern that the amendment would result in the reduction of incentives to be efficient and cost-effective in operations. Therefore, the Legislature limited the so-called "pass-through statute" to a pass-through of fuel cost increases from independent sources of supply with a finding by the Commission that the increase is "justified". Tapes of House of Representatives Floor Debate, H.B. 227, Feb. 12, 14, 1975.

The pass-through statute was amended in 1976 and again in 1981 in order to better define expenses which qualified for pass-through treatment and to streamline the pass-through procedure. § 54-7-12(3)(d), Utah Code Ann. (1981 Amend.) now reads:

If a public utility files a proposed rate increase based on an increase cost to the utility for fuel or energy purchased or obtained from independent contractors, other independent suppliers, or any supplier whose prices are regulated by a governmental agency, the commission shall issue a tentative order with respect to such proposed increase within ten days after the proposal is filed unless it issues a final order with respect to such rate increases in

20 days after the proposal was filed. A public hearing shall be held by the commission within 30 days after issuance of such tentative order to determine if the proposed rate increase is just and reasonable.

In a pass-through proceeding only evidence related to energy costs is considered and a Commission finding that a rate increase is just and reasonable only relates to the energy cost component of the rates collected from customers, since only energy costs are considered.

The vehicle developed for the purpose of implementing the Legislature's intent with regard to the pass through of energy related costs for both gas and electric utilities has been the Energy Balancing Account. The Energy Balancing Account (EBA) was instituted by the Commission for Utah Power & Light in Case Nos. 78-035-21 and 79-035-03 in a general rate Order issued July 20, 1979, and the pertinent portions of which are attached hereto as Appendix 3.

In the context of Utah Power not only fuel costs, (coal) were unpredictable but also the cost of purchased energy and non-tariff revenues. It was because these energy related costs and revenues could not be adequately projected in general rate cases that the EBA was instituted. The Commission found:

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