1982

Utah Department of Business Regulation, Division of Public Utilities, Committee of Consumer Services v. Public Service Commission of Utah, Brent H. Cameron, Chairman, David R. Irvine, Commissioner, James M. Byrne. Commissioner : Brief of Intervenor Utah Power & Light Company

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Intervenor Utah Power & Light Company ("Utah Power" or "Company") filed an application with the Public Service Commission of Utah ("Commission") seeking to modify the accounting procedures of the Commission ordered Energy Balancing Account ("EEA") in order to satisfy the purpose of the account which is to prevent windfall benefits to either the Company or its ratepayers.

DISPOSITION BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Utah Power upon application to the Commission sought and was granted an accounting procedure modification to the subject Energy Balancing Account.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Intervenor Utah Power seeks a determination by this Court affirming the Commission Order issued in the subject case.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Commission in its Report and Order in Cases No. 78-035-21, 79-035-03, and 79-035-15 directed

and, however, upon recommendation of the Plaintiff
to implement the balancing account procedure
outlined in those orders for the purpose of eliminat-
ing "perceived inequitable results, as to both the
Company and its ratepayers, occurring from inaccurate
forecasting of non-tariff sales, surplus sales to other
utilities, purchases from other utilities and fuel
costs in rate cases." See Commission Order On Rehear-
ing, Case No. 82-035-14, July 5, 1983, page 2. The
Company subsequently established the account as
ordered. The EBA procedure requires the Company to
forecast anticipated revenues to be received from
tariff and surplus sales and anticipated expenses
to be incurred from purchased energy and fuel costs.
After setting the components of the formula an EBA
formula approved by the Commission, becomes a part of
the Company's tariff and is the basis upon which rates
are set and revenues are collected. During or at the
end of the forecast period, retroactive adjustments are
made to the EBA to bring the forecasted numbers into
compliance with actual numbers. The result of the
retroactive adjustments together with forecasted
revenues and expenses for the next period are
presented in the next EBA hearing and the process
begins anew. See Commission Order On Rehearing, Case
No. 82-035-14, July 5, 1983, pages 2-3.

In the case at bar through the period in
question, the Company experienced substantially less

the forecast of the utility customers that forecasted the result that generating capacity was idle. The cost of the idle generating capacity were borne by the Company and its shareholders without offsetting benefit. The Company in an effort to use the idle generating facilities aggressively went and found a market for the energy with non-tariff customers. The result was non-tariff sales exceeded those forecasted by \$18,000,000.00. The Company by application to the Commission then sought modification of the EBA accounting procedure to enable one third of the revenue windfall from the non-tariff sales to flow to the Company and proposed that the other two thirds flow to the benefit of the Company's customers. Under the EBA procedure, without the proposed modification, the revenue windfall would inure to the benefit of the ratepayer. The evidence showed that the proposed and authorized EBA accounting modification would not result in the Company earning even near its authorized return on equity. (Exhibits)

The Division argue that the Company's request was being considered improperly as an energy cost pass-through pursuant to §54-7-12(3)(d), Utah Code Ann. (1983 Supp.), that the accounting procedure modification was retroactive ratemaking, and that the proposed request was not an energy cost pass-through

POINT I

THE COMMISSION'S ORDER ALLOWING AN ACCOUNTING MODIFICATION IN THE SUBJECT ENERGY BALANCING ACCOUNT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A UTILITY RATE INCREASE OR RETROACTIVE RATEMAKING

Utah Code Ann. §54-7-12(2) (1983 Supp.) specifies the procedure pursuant to which public utilities may increase rates. Said section provides:

(2) Any public utility that proposes to effect a rate increase shall file appropriate schedules with the commission setting forth the proposed rate increase. The commission shall, either upon complaint, or upon its own initiative without complaint, after reasonable notice, hold a hearing to determine whether the proposed rate increase, or some other rate increase, is just and reasonable. Except as otherwise provided in subsection (3) of this section, no proposed rate increase is effective until after completion of the hearing and issuance of a final order by the commissioner with respect to the proposed increase.

Subpart (3)(d) of §54-7-12 specifies an exception to the above described general rate case procedure for rate increases based upon increased costs of the utility for fuel or energy purchased or obtained from specified supplies. The "fuel pass-through procedure" enables rates to reflect relatively quickly to often changing cost of fuel and purchased energy.

...fuel, as the cost of fuel and purchased energy have fluctuated in both directions since the statute was enacted, the overall impact of the fuel pass-through procedure has been positive in impact to both the company and its ratepayers.

Other jurisdictions have adopted the fuel pass-through procedure and have recognized a distinction between the process necessary to secure general rate relief and the process necessary to secure rate relief for fuel and purchased energy costs. Courts have determined that the fuel pass-through procedure does not constitute retroactive ratemaking. In The City of Norfolk v. Virginia Electric & Power Company, 9 Va. 505, 90 SE2d 140 (1955), the Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals approved a fuel clause (referred to by that court as an escalator clause) for a power company under its jurisdiction, recognizing a distinction between rate fixing and approving a fuel clause. The Virginia court decided that the Virginia escalator clause did not fix rates retroactively:

[T]he escalator clause is, therefore, highly remedial; it confers no benefit on the stockholders of the company except to help the avoidance of unjustified loss, and...it likewise deprives them of the possibility of keeping an unjustified gain.

In approving the escalator clause the Commission did not fix rates retroactively, but on the contrary, it authorized and prescribed a fixed mathematical formula to be inserted in

the schedules of the Company which will be used as a "guide, direction or rule of action" for determining future rates.

Record at 146-48.

In North Carolina ex rel. Utilities Commission v. Edmiston, 30 N.C.App. 459, 227 SE2d 593 (1976), the question of whether or not a surcharge could be imposed to collect for increasing fuel costs under authority of a 1975 statute allowing fuel adjustment was discussed. The court determined that in August 1975 the State Utilities Commission's order allowing the power company to apply a temporary surcharge to collect its increased fuel charges for July and August of 1975 did not constitute retroactive rate fixing, but was a proper approval of the fuel clause designed to recover previously incurred costs. The attorney general had argued that part of the August 17, 1975 order allowing Duke Power Company ("Duke") to apply a temporary surcharge to collect its increased fuel costs for July and August of 1975 constituted retroactive rate fixing which was not authorized by the North Carolina statutes. He said that the Commission cannot fix rates retroactively so as to make them collectible for past service. 227 SE2d at 599. The court, however, concluded that there was a difference between rate fixing and approving a fuel clause designed to recover previously incurred costs. The court found the Commission's position persuasive.

The facts of Lumisten, 1976, merit close attention. The court decided that decisions made in the context of a general rate fixing case are not applicable in the case of a fuel adjustment clause. The court authorized by the North Carolina Commission to implement a fuel clause which was only a means to make a certain fuel a workable figure from the standpoint of its customers and was not meant to "fix rates." 227 SE2d at 599. The court concluded that the cost of fuel used in the generating of electricity by a utility should be treated as a factor separate from all others in the utility's rate structure. Such was the intent of the general assembly in North Carolina when it enacted the statute authorizing such an adjustment. The statute in North Carolina expressly stated that a proceeding under it should not be treated as a general rate case. 227 SE2d at 600. The statute defined the procedures for considering an application to change the cost of fuel components and required the Commission to rule on the application within ninety days after it was filed. After October 1973, Duke could not determine the actual cost of electricity kilowatt hour for a given month until two months later. Therefore the bills rendered on January 1974 included increased fuel costs for November 1973 and caused a two month lag in recovering the increased

fuel costs, necessitating the surcharge in question to be applied for July and August of 1975. The Supreme Court upheld the Commission's action in authorizing the recovery of increased fuel costs and did not deem it an attempt by the utility to use a pass-through as means of increasing future rates nor the surcharge to be retroactive ratemaking or a rate change requiring a general rate case.

The facts in Edmisten, 1976, may be compared to the subject case. Utah's fuel adjustment clause statute [Utah Code Ann. §54-7-12(3)(d) (1983 Supp.)], like North Carolina's fuel clause, was designed so that the utility could recover fuel costs. In Edmisten the recovery of fuel costs was deemed necessary and was not determined by the court to be retroactive rate fixing, or an attempt by the utility to use the pass-through to increase future rates to make up for past deficits, or subject to the procedural requirements necessary for a rate increase. The accounting modification requested by Utah Power in the subject case is not an improper use of the EBA account, should not be subject to the procedures required in a general rate hearing, and is not retroactive rate fixing.

In North Carolina ex rel. Utilities Commission v. Edmisten, 291 NC 451, 232 SE2d 184 (1977), the court appears to reverse the decision made in Edmisten, 1976, cited supra. Shepard's Citations notes that

of the W. P. Carey with Public Company tried to bring the case to the court's attention. The Commission was informed that Public Company purchased W. P. Carey and that Public Company had a reasonable belief that W. P. Carey was one of the most valuable companies in the country. Variable should have been disclosed. DeVergio's opinion was that the case was not appropriate and as such was not to be pursued. There was no action taken with respect to Public Company as a result of this investigation.

W. P. Carey, Incorporated was investigated under Order No. 80-16, and the Commission was advised that adjustment was made for the year 1971 in which such costs were incurred. W. P. Carey reported its 1971 net income of \$4.4 million, which reflected the adjustments to the net income. Adjustments were made for the year 1971, but adjustment was not made for the year 1972, and it did not require a hearing.

The Commission was advised that it implemented the provisions of the W. P. Carey case treatment, in which the Commission, through Attorney General, is required to determine whether or not a hearing should be held under the provisions of the W. P. Carey without hearings,

...and that such increases would not be illegal if the increases were limited to purchase of power or fuel. In an opinion issued June 4, 1981, the attorney general advised that the legislature had apparently acquiesced to the Commission's practice of allowing increases under an automatic adjustment clause and that modification of the fuel adjustment clause may be made without a general consideration of the entire rate schedule of the company. See Op. Wis. Attorney General No. 35-81 (June 4, 1981).

Implementing automatic fuel cost adjustments is an accepted practice. As discussed in the previous report, support, in other jurisdictions where automatic fuel adjustments have been allowed, the courts have not considered the practice to be an attempt to increase future rates. Nor have the courts determined that a collection or surcharge necessary to adjust a miscalculation is retroactive ratemaking or illegal implementation of a new rate without following the procedure necessary in a general rate case.

Plaintiff in its brief seems to advocate a similar position arguing that case law and statutes identify the standards for determining "just and reasonable" rates, that rates must be prospective in effect under Public Statute Code Ann. §54-7-12(3)(d) (1983 Supp.), that the so-called fuel pass-through statute, constitutes an exception to Public Statute Code Ann. §54-7-12 (1983 Supp.) which

to the fuel elements of the account but to the non-fuel elements, i.e., non-tariff sales. Although an adjustment in precisely this form has not been sought previously in the past it is certainly consistent with the retroactive adjustments that are typically made in the account balancing process and certainly comports with the intent of the Commission to prevent windfall profits to the Company or its ratepayers. Without the proposed adjustment an \$18,000,000.00 revenue deficiency goes to the Company's ratepayers and no revenue benefit flows to the Company even though the Company is paying the fixed costs on the generating facilities which made the non-tariff sales possible.

The accounting adjustment the Company sought from the Commission granted was retroactive in nature and all other adjustments to the account components are retroactive in nature. The proposed adjustment is no different in terms of substance or form than those previously made in the account. All are retroactive and all are made in connection with the subject components. The Plover does not assert in this case that rates charged by the Company, or that rules, regulations, contracts or contracts affecting such rates are unjust, unreasonable, discriminatory or preferential or that the rates are insufficient. The Company did not petition the Commission did not allow any adjustment in the account. The Company merely sought an adjustment in the

balances due to the unusual circumstances affecting the account in the time frame specified above. These imbalances had resulted from rates which had been charged to the account. There could, therefore, be no retroactive ratemaking. The retroactive adjustment is not equivalent to retroactive ratemaking. The Company insists that the Commission has the authority to allow the subject adjustment and by so doing does not engage in retroactive ratemaking. If the Company's proposed adjustment in this case, however, suffers the infirmity suggested by Plaintiff, the Energy Balancing Account procedure established by the Commission, at the recommendation of Plaintiff, suffers from the same infirmity and in total constitutes retroactive ratemaking and is unlawful.

Intervenor further respectfully points out that Utah Code Ann. §54-7-12(3)(d) (1983 Supp.), the so-called fuel pass-through statute, speaks only to fuel costs and purchased energy costs. There is no mention or direction that non-tariff sales revenues are to be exempted from treatment in normal rate case circumstances. Accordingly, the Commission in establishing the account and including therein non-tariff sales revenues went well beyond the legislative directive and is therefore acting without authority and the EBA in its

is not to be declared unlawful. See Basin Flying

554 P.2d 1303, 10 ENERGY Commission, 531 P.2d 1303

(1976).

In its own conclusion, the Company submits that
§ 54-7-11(6) of 54-7-12 constitutes an exception to
the general rate case procedures specified in subpart
60 of 54-6-11, that the Utah fuel pass-through
statute relates only to fuel and purchased energy
costs, that practice under the EBA has involved the
making of retroactive adjustments to the account, that
the adjustment sought in the case at bar does not
cover fuel or purchased energy costs but non-tariff
rate revenue, and that the Commission adopted EBA
procedure is considerably broader than the statute
directs in that it regulates revenues from non-tariff
revenues as well as fuel and purchased energy costs.
Based upon the foregoing intervenor submits that the
accounting modification allowed by the Commission is
consistent with past practice under the EBA procedure
and consistent with Commission policy to prevent
unusual benefits to ratepayers as well as the Company.
However, this Court is persuaded that the proposed
accounting modification constitutes retroactive rate-
making. Intervenor submits that

1. all of the retroactive adjustments typically made in the EBA procedure constitute retroactive ratemaking and are therefore unlawful and

- the EBA procedure as presently adopted by the Commission goes well beyond the statutory directive and accordingly the whole accounting procedure is contrary to law and should be declared unlawful.

POINT 11

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